ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
May 26, 2016
8:30 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senator Lesil MQGQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 4002

"An Act relating to major nedical insurance coverage under the
Public Enployees' Retirenent System of Alaska for certain
surviving spouses and dependent children of peace officers and
firefighters; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: SB4002

SHORT TITLE: INS. FOR DEPENDENTS OF DECEASED FI RE/ POLI CE
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

05/ 23/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 23/ 16 (S) STA, FIN
05/ 26/ 16 (S) STA AT 8:30 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SHELDON FI SHER, Comni ssi oner

Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew and addressed questions

regardi ng SB 4002.

JOHN BOUCHER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- May 26, 2016



Al aska Departnent of Admi nistration
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 4002.

LARRY LANGER, Principal Consulting Actuary

Buck Consultants

Chicago, Illinois

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the cost and risk assessnents
associ ated with SB 4002.

IMELI SSA BI SSETT, Senior Consultant, Health Care Actuary

Buck Consul tants

Denver, Col orado

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the cost and risk assessnments
associ ated with SB 4002.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:30: 35 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:30 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Huggins, and Chair
Stoltze

SB4002- | NSURANCE FOR DEPENDENTS OF DECEASED FI RE/ POLI CE

8:31:30 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 4002. He
detailed that the bill was brought before the commttee by the

adm ni strati on.

He asked Commi ssioner Fisher to explain how SB 4002 becane one
of the 11 bills that were on the special session' s agenda.

8:32: 03 AM

SHELDON FI SHER, Comm ssi oner, Al aska Depart ment of
Adm ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, explained that SB 4002 would
provi de peace officers and fire fighters that are killed in the
line of duty with coverage for their famlies and dependents. He
pointed out that there were gaps that the commttee would have
to address as well as retirenment-plan terns that do not provide
coverage. He said a nunber of high-profile peace officer deaths
over the past few years brought attention to gaps in the state's
current system He revealed that an initial version of the bil
was introduced by Governor Parnell, but the bill's fiscal note

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- May 26, 2016



was quite high because all Al aska Public Enployees' Retirenent
(PERS) and Teachers' Retirenment System (TRS) enployees were
covered. He detailed that the bill's final version was submtted
as an anendnment to SB 91, but the anendnment was ultimtely
pulled. He revealed that the governor's office heard from a
nunber of legislators that supported the bill being addressed in
t he speci al session.

8:.36: 26 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the sponsor that asked the governor to
put it on the special session agenda was fromthe House.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that a nunber of |egislators asked
t he governor to put the bill on the special session's agenda.

CHAI R STOLTZE asserted that the commttee was trying to get to
the bill's broader policy ramfications. He asked Comm ssioner
Fisher to provide guidance on the cautions and unintended
consequences that were discussed with the entire admnistration
when the | egislation was devel oped to provide certainty of |ong-
term benefits.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER specified that the benefit has been provided
by funding out of the Department of Public Safety's budget. He
said there was no assurance the benefit could continue on a
long-term basis and there was a desire to put the benefit in
statute.

He disclosed that questions have been asked whether the bill's
scope should be expanded or reduced. He noted that expanding the
bill could be problematic, particularly because the bill does

not cover Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSO and other
contracted officers. He added that the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) prohibits non-PERS participants from receiving benefits
from the PERS trust fund. He revealed that expanding the PERS
fund could endanger the entire fund where the state would risk
losing its tax-free status. He added that the Departnent of

Adm ni stration has | ooked at whether the bill covered all peace
officers and firefighters as well as state or nunicipa
enpl oyees.

He disclosed that one of the Departnment of Admnistration's
i nputs addressed other jurisdictions that created special carve-
outs and narrowly defining benefit groups. He revealed that the
California Public Enployees’ Retirenment System (Cal PERS) has
al nost becone unmanageabl e because of the breadth of carve-outs
that exist in each jurisdiction within the state. He said even

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- May 26, 2016



t hough SB 4002 may not be perfect, the bill was a bal ance that
appropriately focused on peace officers and firefighters with a
cost that was reasonabl e.

8:39: 55 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the comm ttee neeting.

CHAI R STOLTZE added that the conmittee was going to ask for the
Departnent of Law s input as well. He asked Comm ssioner Fisher
to address his cautions and sideboards regarding the bill. He
noted that Conm ssioner Fisher had tal ked about expansion and
constriction. He asked what would happen if a public enployee
uni on asked that grader operators responding to floods or first
responders to energencies be covered by the benefit as well.

8:.42:13 AM

COM SSIONER FISHER replied that determning precisely who
should be covered was difficult. He agreed that other
occupations have dangers associated with them as well. He set

forth that there was a history of treating peace officers and
firefighters differently. He pointed out that the mjority of
states offer simlar benefit versions to SB 4002. He discl osed
that the feeling was the bill was the appropriate right step in
light of both the history and limtations that were avail able.
He opined that society sees a difference between a job like a
police officer and firefighter where confronting danger was
inherent in the job as opposed to other occupations where there
was a risk of accident. He summarized that he thought society
generally recognizes a different responsibility for the famlies
that are |l eft behind.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that correctional officers were as
much a part of the adm nistration of justice as police officers.

8:45: 03 AM
COW SSI ONER FI SHER expl ained that the statutory definition of
"peace officer" did include correctional officers.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked that Comm ssioner Fisher provide a list of
who was covered.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER detailed that the statutory definition of
peace officer and firefighter including the foll ow ng:

« Police,

e Chief of police,
* Regional public safety officer,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- May 26, 2016



* Correctional officers,

e Correctional superintendents,
* Firefighters,

* Fire chief.

8:46: 13 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE asked that actuarial evidence be provided
regardi ng death rates to support the benefit's narrow category.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he would get back to Senator
McGuire with the actuarial information.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that Comm ssioner Fisher nentioned that a
majority of states had a simlar provision to SB 4002. He asked
Conmi ssioner Fisher to provide information on the other states’
t echni ques in approaching the chall enge. He  asked if
consideration was given for a group program where a dollar or
two a nmonth was contributed towards a death-benefit pool. He
poi nted out that the state's unfunded liability was $7.5 billion
and the Legislature has to be careful in taking on nore debt.

He called attention to Buck Consultants' letter that said,
"Smal | variations and these approxinmations and estinmates nmay
lead to significant changes in actual neasurenments.” He asked
what Buck's letter neant and asked if Buck's statenent was a way
of saying, "W don't know what's going on."

8:49:56 AM

COW SSI ONER FI SHER replied that the sentence Senator Huggins
referred to was standard | anguage that Buck's analysis was based
on the best know edge they have today. He explained that Buck
Consul tants | ooks backwards in order to forecast what is going
to happen in the future, but analysis may be overstated or
understated depending on future changes; for exanple, nortality
rates or nedical costs nay be higher. He opined that no one can
precisely predict the future.

SENATOR HUGA NS renarked that the state's unfunded liability was
due to organi zations |ike Buck Consultants getting it wong. He
asked Commi ssioner Fisher to review Buck Consultants' anal ysis.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER surm sed that the unfunded liability arose
from both actuarial errors and the dramatic decline in the
mar ket that reduced the asset's value. He said Senator Huggins
was correct where a set of assunptions at a given tine were
t hought to be reasonable that turned out to be incorrect and the
state was left with a substantial unfunded liability.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- May 26, 2016



8:52:40 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked Conmm ssioner Fisher to clarify that heath-
care costs were calculated in the $7.5 billion unfunded
liability.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER answer ed yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked Comm ssioner Fisher if the fiscal
note from Buck Consultants' report predicts how many officers
and firefighters will die in the line of duty as well as the age
of spouses, the nunber of dependents, and how |ong insurance
will be collected.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered yes. He said the actuarial analysis
takes the factors Senator Wel echowski noted as well as the cost
of delivering the benefit.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI remarked that variables could include a
dramatic increase in: insurance costs, additional children being
born, marriages, or people dying in the |ine of duty.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered yes. He added that the variables
Senat or W el echowski pointed out could decrease as well.

8:54:46 AM

JOHN  BOUCHER, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, Al aska Depart nent of
Adm ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, pointed out that given the size
of the pool, a large tragic event would be another variabl e.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that the commttee was naking sure that

all of the bill's ramfications were known prior to passing any
retirement change. He remarked that the state was in a lot of
trouble due to retirenment issues. He opined that other

bargaining wunits mght mnmke an effort to get conparable
benefits. He said the question remained whether or not the bil
coul d stand when only being applied to a small group.

8:56:44 AM

COW SSI ONER FI SHER reiterated that he believed that there was a
public sense that police and firefighters are different. He
pointed out that many states treated police and firefighters
differently.

He stated that there were two ways an enpl oyee group may request

addi tional coverage: negotiation where simlar benefits are
demanded or a legal claimthat the benefit group is too narrow.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- May 26, 2016



COW SSI ONER FI SHER di scl osed that he had a conversation wth
the Departnent of Law regarding a legal claim He said he felt
confortable that the legislation would successfully withstand a
| egal cl aim

8:58:47 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE asked Conmi ssioner Fisher if he had a higher |eve
of confidence through the bargaining process or the court
process.

COMW SSI ONER  FI SHER answered that he felt confident in both
processes.

CHAIR STOLTZE comrented that he questioned confidence in
predicting the court process.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he was relying on the state's
experts.

SENATOR COGHI LL stated that he would be interested to hear from
the Departnment of Law regarding a possible legal claim He asked
if the cost of a legal clai mwuld be borne by the trust fund.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that the cost would be borne by the
enpl oyers, but pointed out that the previously noted cap would
require additional state assistance.

SENATOR COGHILL commented that the thought a PERS-system trust
paying out a narrow benefit would result in a higher potential
for litigation. He asked Conmm ssioner Fisher to confirm that
paynment woul d cone out of the general fund.

9:01: 05 AM

COW SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned t hat t he Depart ment of
Adm ni stration works each year with the actuaries in the Al aska
Retirement Managenent (ARM Board to define a cost for the
benefits that are delivered and those costs are allocated to
each enpl oyer. He pointed out that because enployers are already
capped in their contribution rate, increase in essence would
fall to the state. He added that the rate noted in the fisca
note was the actuarial estimte of the additional cost necessary
to fund the trust fund to pay for the benefits.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that asking if the paynents would cone
out of the general fund was too limting. He asserted that the
current discussion addressed the broader-pension obligations
whi ch invol ve the general fund, permanent fund earnings reserve,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- May 26, 2016



constitutional budget reserve, and the dividend which is a
derivative of the permanent fund earnings reserve.

SENATOR COGHI LL specified that he was addressing the litigation
part if the trust fund was going to bear the responsibility. He
opined that all of the other people who contribute to the fund
woul d feel that the proposed |egislation was too narrow.

9:03: 37 AM
MR. BOUCHER remarked that the state may be subjecting itself to
additional litigation, however; there was a long history within

the PERS trust funds of peace officers and firefighters having
slightly different benefits than all other enployees.

SENATOR COCGHILL stated that he appreciated M. Boucher's renmarks
for getting at the heart of his question regarding specific |aw
previously made for retirenent benefits. He said his concern was
that the | egislation does not beconme "flypaper for litigation."

CHAIR STOLTZE said the larger issue pertained to the Legislature
going through a lot of pain trying to get a handle on the
retirement system He stated that in spite of everybody's
enpathy for trying to take care of the problem that the
| egi sl ati on addresses, there was a caution anytine a retirenent
issue was opened up. He specified that the issue was much
broader than the two people or the two famlies.

9: 05: 39 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL asked Conmi ssioner Fisher to confirm that SB
4002 would be retroactive to 2013. He inquired how many famlies
woul d be picked up by the bill.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER stated that three famlies would be captured
from 2013 to present.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked Comm ssioner Fisher to confirm that the
bill would say being retired was not a requirenent and the death
benefit would go to health care upon the unfortunate death of
the police officer or the firefighter.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ained that the benefit would depend on
the person's Defined Contribution Plan (DCR) tier. He detailed
that upon the death of the peace officer or firefighter killed
in the line of duty, all surviving spouses and dependents woul d
be eligible for premumfree health benefits; however, spouses
and dependents for a DCR Plan Tier IV would receive 100 percent
prem um subsidy wuntil an individual becomes Medicare eligible

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- May 26, 2016



and would then pay the portion of the premum as if there had
been no death event.

9:08: 54 AM
SENATOR COCGHI LL asked Comm ssioner Fisher to clarify benefits
for the Tier-1V recipients.

COMWM SSIONER FISHER reiterated that once a person becones
Medicare eligible, the person would pay their portion of the
cost as if there had been no deat h.

SENATOR COGHILL asked if the state would pay the premum for a
Tier 1V recipient until Medicare eligibility.

COMM SSI ONER FI SHER answer ed yes.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the state would cover 100 percent of
the benefit.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER answered yes. He added that under the DCR
Plan, nmenbers are required to retire directly from the plan and
SB 4002 renoves that requirenent. He said SB 4002 would also
extend the benefit to dependents in the event there was no
survi vi ng spouse.

SENATOR COCGHI LL asked Conmi ssioner Fisher what he neant by,
"Menbers are required to retire directly fromthe plan.™

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that an exanple would be a person
with five years of service and Tier IV status was killed in the
line of duty. He pointed out that there is no opportunity to
retire directly from the plan because statutorily a Tier |V
person nust have 25 years of service and have worked the prior
12 nonths. He pointed out that in the case of an individual
dying prior to reaching the statutorial paranmeters, retiring was
technically inpossible. He specified that SB 4002 nade a
techni cal change that allows the benefit to be provided.

9:11:43 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that Conm ssioner Fisher remarked
about Al aska conming into conformance with other states. He asked
t hat Conmm ssioner Fisher provide further details.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER clarified that he did not nmean to say that
every state does exactly what SB 4002 proposes. He specified
that other states provide some form of benefit that varies. He
reiterated that there was a broad recognition in the public that

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- May 26, 2016



peace officers and firefighters nerit a heightened |evel of
benefit in the event of occupational death. He said he would
provide the commttee wth details regarding what other states
have done.

CHAI R STOLTZE specified that his question was neant to clarify
for the public.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked what would occur if a surviving spouse
remarried.

MR. BOUCHER answered that the status of the benefit does not
change until the surviving spouse becones Medi care-age eligible.

9:14: 45 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE stated that she generally supported the concept
for SB 4002 and felt that peace officers were different when
asked to do the things we do not want to do. She said she would
like the Legislature to explore the notion of zero percent
contribution and noted three different suggestions:

* Beneficiary pays a percentage by adding "skin in the gane,"
e G aduated benefit over a specific tinme period,
e Ability to pay.

She summari zed that she gets the principal and understands the
idea of recognizing the service of individuals. She asserted
that the questions were not neant to be disrespectful. She said
consi dering where Al askans can partner was inportant because the
state was not in the position to give all and do all anynore or
in the foreseeable future.

9:19:16 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked what the responsibility would be for a
municipality if one of its police officers was killed in the
[ine of duty.

COM SSIONER FISHER replied that the bill as defi ned
contenplates that there would be an increase in the enployer
contributions. He said theoretically the enployer would pick up
the cost, but the enployer contribution is capped so the state
woul d pay for the additional contribution.

MR. BOUCHER suggested that the peace officers and firefighters

be thought of as a group in a kind of "benefit pool" for all the
enpl oyers that are involved so a specific municipality would not

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- May 26, 2016



bear the sole burden, the benefit contribution would be shared
across all of the participating enployers.

9:21: 30 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS said he would be interested to see what Al aska
does versus other states. He asserted that the bill addresses a
tragic situation, but noted his disappointnment that nore
spendi ng was requested when the state has a $4 billion deficit.
He noted that the governor expanded Medicaid and asked
Comm ssioner Fisher if the governor had the authority to do the
same for the proposed benefit.

9:25:34 AM
COW SSI ONER FI SHER responded that he did not know.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that his question deserves an answer
regardi ng whet her the governor has the authority.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asserted that he had a different
perspective than sone others in the commttee. He admtted that
the fiscal note was not insignificant at $174,000 for FY17 with
an increase a few years later to over a couple of hundred
t housand dollars; however, when reviewing the capital budget,
the Legislature was spending noney on new legislative offices
and $1.5 mllion on new security for the capitol. He stated that
the priority order of things in his mnd was that there was
nothing nore inportant than providing health care for deceased
spouses and dependent kids of firefighters and police officers.
He affirmed that firefighters and police officers were giving
enough "skin in the ganme" by giving their lives to protect the
state. He stated that he supported SB 4002.

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that he did not think  Senator
W el echowski's stated philosophy was different from other
commttee nenbers. He asserted that the commttee was | ooking at
the unforeseen ram fication.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that he hoped that he prefaced his
comments about the commttee's concern about the victins. He
pointed out that he was one of the guys that went around the
world and put his life on the line.

9:27: 53 AM

SENATOR MCQUIRE said she did not appreci ate Senat or
W el echowski's remark. She expressed that it would be easy for
the conmttee to say, "Just fund it." She voiced that al
commttee nmenbers felt trenmendous enpathy for the survivors of

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- May 26, 2016



t hose who have been killed in any circunstances, but certainly
in the line of duty. She set forth that the state was in a
situation where everything was reevaluated as how to mtigate
costs and nove forward in the future. She remarked that
reeval uating was not inappropriate and reevaluating a new cost
would be a violation of the commttee nenbers' oath to the
constitution. She specified that reevaluating was the point of
"skin in the game" and her remark was not neant to inply that
the ultimte sacrifice was not given. She admtted that a
circunstance |ike insurance for dependents when presented to
conm ttee nmenbers has tremendous enotion behind it. She asserted
that being in the nmajority and | eading was always nmore difficult
than just nmaking remarks in the mnority.

9: 30: 03 AM

MR. BOUCHER announced that Larry Langer and Melissa Bissett from
Buck Consultants were online to address the commttee. He asked
M. Langer and Ms. Bissett to address the Buck Consulting letter
submtted to the conmttee as well as speaking to sonme of the
comments the commttee posed relating to risks of assunption.

9:32:40 AM
LARRY LANGER, Principal Consulting Actuary, Buck Consultants,
Chicago, Illinois, announced that he was available to address

the risk el enent associated with SB 4002.

9:33: 23 AM

MELI SSA BI SSETT, Senior Consultant, Health Care Actuary, Buck
Consul tants, Denver, Colorado, announced that she would provide
an overview of the letter she wote, the work Buck Consultants
did and the itens considered in preparing the fiscal note.

She stated that Buck Consultants' understanding has always been
to investigate the inpact of potentially providing free nmedica
care to survivors of peace officer and firefighter enployees who
die in the line of duty. She detailed that Bucks Consultants
identified the people and changed the evaluation to reflect no
contribution requirenments that were dependent on eligibility.

She specified that the bigger inpact was on the Tier |V group
that had to pay 100 percent of the premium for a potentially
| onger period. She added that nedical-care benefits were also
extended to Tier Il and Tier |1l participants that may have been
required to pay premuns prior to age 60. She detailed that Buck
Consul tants changed all of the evaluation paraneters to renove
the prem um subsidy as well as when Medicare eligibility kicks
in for a Tier IV spouse. She added that retroactivity back to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- May 26, 2016



January 2013 was also taken into consideration. She summarized
that results between the original-draft valuation and the inpact
fromrenoving the prem umrequirenments was al so addressed.

V. BI SSETT addressed the commttee's previous question
regardi ng what would happen if a survivor remarries or becones
enployed with primary coverage, the plan would pay secondary in
t hose cases. She detailed that the secondary-coverage scenario
was a mnor adjustnent to what was initially projected as far as
i ncreasi ng costs.

She sunmarized that the results would inmpact the unfunded
l[iability by $557,000 and be split between PERS and the DCR
Pl an.

9:36: 51 AM
MR. BOUCHER asked Ms. Bissett to readdress the scenario where
t he pl an becones secondary.

IVS. BISSETT reiterated that the state plan would becone
secondary only where a surviving spouse renarries or becones
enpl oyed and has another source of primary coverage that he or
she el ects.

MR. BOUCHER expressed that M. Bissett's statenent was counter
to what he had said earlier. He asked Ms. Bissett to confirm
that the cost of the plan would potentially increase if the plan
was primary in the instance that she descri bed.

M5. BI SSETT answered correct.

COW SSIONER  FISHER clarified that M. Boucher's statenent
regarding the plan's inpact of a surviving spouse remarrying was
not counter to Ms. Bissett's statenment. He specified that the
plan does not change the legal right for an individual to
receive the benefit after remarrying. He explained that the
anal ysis assuned a percentage of people either take a job or
change their marital status which provides access to another
plan. He said Buck Consultants' assunption was that the state
plan would be secondary to the other plan that ultimtely
reduces the forecasted cost.

M5. BISSETT concurred with Conm ssioner Fisher and noted that
the results were reflected in Buck's report. She reiterated that
the inmpact on the unfunded liability was an additional $557, 000.
She summari zed the assunptions considered as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 13- May 26, 2016



* Health care cost trends,
e« Chance of soneone being killed in the line of duty,

 Effects of aging where people cost nore, especially in the
few years prior to Medicare eligibility.

9:39: 55 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL remarked that because the state was snmall, the
retroactivity in picking up two versus three famlies was a
significant actuarial change on |ooking forward. He asked how
far Buck Consultants | ooked back.

MS. BI SSETT answered that the fiscal note went back two years.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER asked how far Buck Consultants went back to
establish historical trend analysis regarding nedical, nortality
and other trends for forecasting. He assuned that Buck
Consultants went back further than two years to calculate trends
to forecast into the future.

9:41: 44 AM
M5. BI SSETT answered correct. She detailed that Buck | ooked back
at least four years to set health-care cost trends.

COM SSI ONER  FI SHER asked Ms. Bissett to address nortality
trends.

M5. BISSETT replied that nortality trends were based on an
experience study that was conpleted and adopted in 2014. She
noted that nortality rates were inproving.

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed that having police officers deal wth
ci rcunstances due to what the state was facing was unfortunate.
He pointed out that state has paid death benefits to survivors
outside of health-care benefits for many years. He asked M.
Bi ssett if Buck Consultants |ooked back and established a trend
line based on the benefits that have been paid to survivors.

9:44: 25 AM
M5. BISSETT asked Senator Coghill to <clarify that he was
wonderi ng about the basis for the nortality assunption.

COM SSI ONER  FI SHER  explained that Senat or Coghi | | was
specifically addressing the historical "killed in the line of
duty" category rather than overall nortality to calculate the
assunpti on.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- May 26, 2016



SENATOR COCHI LL stated that Comm ssioner Fisher's assunption was
correct.

M5. BISSETT reiterated that Buck Consultants did an experience
study on group-specific nortality in 2014. She noted that Buck
Consul tants | ooked at Al aska-specific experiences dating back
five years or nore in addition to industry information. She
specified that there was a difference between occupational
deaths and nortality rates.

CHAIR STOLTZE recalled that the Legislature passed the
presunptive-cost bill that was limted to firefighters and first
responders. He asked if the stand-alone provision would inpact
SB 4002.

9:46: 57 AM
MR BOUCHER answered that he did not see a connecti on.

CHAI R STOLTZE asserted that the commttee's intent was not to
i nadvertently dimnish or nake unintended changes just for the

purposes of being careful. He stated that the commttee's
over al | concern has not been the cost of the three
beneficiaries, but for the long term ramfications. He said he
understood the real-people connection and enpathy as well as

anybody, but the commttee wants to vet SB 4002.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted "Obamacare" and asked if subsidizing
beneficiaries would be feasible for health care insurance.

9:49: 47 AM

COM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that theoretically the state could
contenplate going onto the "exchange" to by coverage for the
famlies, but the insurance cost was so high in Al aska that the
cost to the state would be substantially nore. He specified that
the cost of insuring the "pool"™ in which the people currently
reside in was substantially less than the cost of buying a
conpar abl e i nsurance policy on the "exchange."

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked Conmm ssioner Fisher to verify if the
Gbanacar e approach woul d be nore costly.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he believed so.
9:50: 51 AM
SENATOR MCQUI RE di scl osed that during the wake of Cbamacare, she

had an idea as part of a permanent-fund restructure to add a
provision that allowed Alaskans to "check off" part of their

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- May 26, 2016



di vidend to beconme part of a state pool for either health care,
retirement or long-term care. She encouraged Comm ssioner Fisher
to have Buck Consultants anal yze where a state pool's volunetric
nunbers coul d | everage | ower rates for Al askans.

SENATOR MCGUI RE reveal ed that the reason why she brought up the
idea for a state-pool fund was due to the "stratification" of
those that receive good benefits and those that do not. She
opined that very few Al askans would have conplained about SB
4002 if the bill was considered when oil prices and production
were higher. She said the optics for everything have been
altered due to the state's econom ¢ changes.

9:55: 22 AM
COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that the majority of the increased
cost of providing insurance on the exchange was due to high-cost
cl ai mant s.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE clarified that her previous statenent referred
to a broader point about Al askan |ooking for insurance but were
rel egated to the higher-cost exchange. She opined that the only
peopl e in the exchange where those with preexisting conditions.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he agreed with the trend that
Senator MQuire pointed out and stated that the Departnent of
Adm nistration shared the same concern. He opined that state
wor ker versus private sector benefits was probably beyond the
scope of the day's hearing to dig into the "broad scope."” He set
forth that the administration and Legislature has attenpted to
narrow the focus on a group of individuals and be reasonable in
light of all of the balancing issues that the commttee raised.

9:58: 16 AM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE reiterated that she agreed with the bill, but
specified that her broader point addressed average Al askans
having access to health care, long-termcare and retirenent. She
chal | enged Conmi ssioner Fisher to not just deal with the issues
before him but to give broader consideration of what types of
opportunities there mght be to expand the volunme of Al askans
that get access to benefits.

9:59: 40 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE held SB 4002 in comm tt ee.

10: 02: 34 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 16- May 26, 2016



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Conmttee at
10: 02 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- May 26, 2016



